

2022 Annual Security Report

For incidents occurring between January 1, 2021 - December 31, 2021

Published October 1, 2022

Table of Contents

Introduction	3
About the Annual Security Report	3
About the Institution	3
Institutional Policy Statements	4
Campus Facilities and Building Security	4
Campus Law Enforcement	5
Emergency Response and Evacuation Procedures	7
Crime Prevention and Safety Awareness	9
Alcohol and Other Drugs Policies and Programs	10
Sexual Misconduct Policies and Procedures	11
Sexual Misconduct Awareness Training and Prevention	13
Crime Statistics	14
Definitions of Clearly Act Crimes, State Law Definitions of Certain Sexual Misconduct and Clery Geography Definitions	

2022 Annual Crime Awareness and Campus Security Report

Kansas Health Science Center (KHSC) - Kansas College of Osteopathic Medicine (KansasCOM)

Introduction

About the Annual Security Report

This Annual Security Report (the "ASR") is provided to meet the requirements of the *Jeanne Clery Disclosure of Campus Security Policy and Campus Crime Statistics Act of 1988* (the "Clery Act") and has been prepared by Kansas Health Science Center (KHSC) - Kansas College of Osteopathic Medicine's (KansasCOM) Security Department. The Clery Act is a federal law which requires colleges and universities across the United States to disclose information about crime on or around their campuses. KHSC-KansasCOM first opened to students on July 25, 2022. KHSC-KansasCOM will begin collecting and reporting on statistical crime data during the 2023 Annual Security Report (ASR) cycle. This ASR includes descriptions of current institutional policies concerning campus safety such as policies on drug use, crime prevention, the reporting of crimes, sexual assault, and other matters.

About the Institution

KHSC-KansasCOM is a not-for-profit osteopathic medical school offering a Doctor of Osteopathic Medicine (DO) degree.¹ As of July 25, 2022, KansasCOM operates out of one campus at 217 E. Douglas, Wichita, KS. 67202, with many faculty and staff also working remotely. KansasCOM has had students on campus since July 25, 2022.

As of the time of this report, KHSC-KansasCOM has 48 faculty and 34 staff members, serving a student body of 90.

All information regarding campus safety and Title IX policies is publicly available on the KHSC-KansasCOM website: www.kansascom.org

¹ At the time of publication of this ASR, Kansas Health Science Center (KHSC) - Kansas College of Osteopathic Medicine (KansasCOM) has been granted pre-accreditation status from the American Osteopathic Association's Commission on Osteopathic College Accreditation (COCA). COCA is the accrediting agency recognized by the United States Department of Education (USDE) for predoctoral education of osteopathic physicians in the United States. Pre-accreditation, as distinct from full accreditation, permits KHSC-KansasCOM to solicit applications and admit students, offer medical instruction within the approved osteopathic medical curriculum, and announce its Pre-Accreditation Status. KHSC-KansasCOM can be considered for full accreditation status following the graduation of its first class, which it anticipates will occur in May 2026. The attainment of full accreditation status is subject to review and approval by COCA.

Institutional Policy Statements

BUILDING SECURITY FOR KHSC-KansasCOM CAMPUS

Emergency Phone Numbers

Wichita Police & Fire Emergency Only: 911

Non-Emergency: 316-350-3440

Building Security Security Phone: 316-249-8755

and After Hours

Director of Physical Operations & Security Sean Wallace: 316-295-6497

Access to Campus Facilities

KHSC-KansasCOM is a non-profit osteopathic medical school, and its campus occupies five floors of a leased property located in a single building at 217 E. Douglas Wichita, KS. 67202. All classes are held on campus.

The campus administration is dedicated to promoting campus safety and crime prevention is a high priority. Maintenance, building security, and KHSC-KansasCOM personnel regularly inspect campus facilities for potential safety and security hazards. Prompt response is made to repair identified hazards to further assist in providing a safe environment. Campus administrative and academic offices are generally locked after 5:00 p.m. and reopened at 7:00 a.m. Monday through Friday. However, the campus is available to students from 7:00am – 11:00pm Monday through Friday and 9:00am – 6:00pm Saturday and Sunday.

KHSC-KansasCOM campus is well lighted and monitored by the building facilities and the on-campus security department, and access is controlled by HID card readers on all doors, and cameras are stationed throughout campus property.

Clery Geography²

Access to KHSC-KansasCOM campus during hours of operation are permitted only with KHSC-KansasCOM's consent which may be withdrawn at any time for any reason. KHSC-KansasCOM gives implied permission to persons with genuine and legitimate purposes to enter and remain on its premises during hours of operation after checking in with reception and being escorted by an employee sponsor. That permission is, however, conditional upon the person behaving in a manner consistent with any policies or procedures KHSC-KansasCOM may have in place. KHSC-KansasCOM is within its rights to withdraw permission and request the person leaves its premises. In addition to faculty, staff, and student access to campus, KHSC-KansasCOM makes their facility available to community, government, and medical organizations to hold meetings and conferences. These groups must make reservations with our community engagement office and the facility must have security and/or the KHSC-KansasCOM sponsor on property.

² The institution does not have any student housing.

We attempt to maintain our facilities in a manner that minimizes hazardous conditions. Regular security patrols are conducted, and malfunctioning lights or other unsafe physical conditions are reported to the Director of Facilities for correction. In addition, KHSC-KansasCOM invites reports of physical hazards (e.g., a malfunctioning door, broken furniture, spills, plumbing problems, electrical problems, etc.). Contact Campus Security for support at 316-249-8755 to report facility issues.

Campus

The KHSC-KansasCOM Campus is located at 217 E. Douglas in Wichita, KS. The campus consists of five floors of a leased building (defined as Campus Property) where all classes are held. The campus geography extends out to the public sidewalks and to Chester E. Lewis Park (defined as Public Property) which visitors and students access to enter the main entrance.

Parking

KHSC-KansasCOM leases 200 spaces in an enclosed and HID card-controlled parking garage located to the southwest of the main campus at 222 E. Market Wichita, KS (defined as Campus Property) which includes stairwells, elevators, and vehicle entrances. The sidewalks bordering the building are included in our statistical reporting but are defined as public property. The main campus building is accessed through a skybridge (defined as Campus Property) from the parking garage to the building and entry is also controlled by HID card access.

KHSC-KansasCOM also leases 50 spaces of a surface parking lots (defined as Campus Property) located to the southwest of the main campus at William and Broadway streets Wichita, KS. This includes the sidewalks bordering the parking lot, and vehicle entrances to access the lot (defined as Public Property).

Campus Law Enforcement

KHSC-KansasCOM does not have an institutional campus police department but does have a Campus Security Department with a Director of Physical Operations & Security, and security officers which are off duty Wichita Police Officers. The Director of Physical Operations & Security patrols the campus, parking garage, and surface lot Monday through Friday 7:30am – 3:00pm CST. The off-duty Wichita Police Officers patrol the campus and parking lots Monday through Friday, 3:00pm-11:00pm CST and Saturday and Sunday, 9:00am-6:00pm CST. The off-duty Wichita Police Officers are certified Kansas Law Enforcement Officers, and all have the authority to arrest individuals. KHSC-KansasCOM works closely with the Wichita Police Department as local law enforcement. Although KHSC-KansasCOM does not currently have any agreements (including, but not limited to a Memorandum of Understanding) with the Wichita Police Department, they are the law enforcement agency for the City of Wichita and have the authority to report and investigate crime on the KHSC-KansasCOM Campus Property and Non-Campus Property when called by KHSC-KansasCOM security authorities.

Reporting a Crime/Suspicious Activity

It is the policy of the KHSC-KansasCOM Campus Security Department to encourage faculty, staff, and students to report all crimes and suspicious activity promptly and accurately to Campus Security and the appropriate police agency. Campus Security Officers are responsible for accepting disclosures of crimes and suspicious activity and reporting those crimes in the KHSC-KansasCOM Guardian Records management system for disclosure in the annual Clery Security Report. KHSC-KansasCOM maintains a campus security crime log which is available for public viewing, by contacting Campus Security at 316-249-8755.

Criminal activity and emergencies that have occurred on campus can be reported to the local authorities as well as to the Security Department at 316-249-8755, the Director of Student Affairs/Title IX Coordinator at 314-210-0663, or any trusted faculty or staff member. All cases or crimes, fires, or other emergencies in progress should be reported directly to local police or by dialing 911.

KHSC-KansasCOM also encourages accurate and prompt reporting of crimes when the victim elects to or is unable to make such a report. Victims of crime who do not want to pursue action within the institutional system or the criminal justice system, are encouraged to consider making a confidential report to the KHSC-KansasCOM Campus Security Department. Anonymous tips can also be left on the tip option of KHSC-KansasCOM SAFE, a security application downloadable wherever faculty, staff or students download apps. With the victim's permission, the Campus Security Department can file a report on the details of the incident without revealing your identity. In such circumstances, crime victims are encouraged to consider making a confidential report to one of the designated Campus Security Authorities. At a minimum, crime victims will have the option to receive valuable counseling and referral information.

Confidential reports are important because they provide valuable information that may enhance the safety of the community-at-large and they will, at least, provide a more accurate portrait of actual campus crime. The purpose of a confidential report is to comply with the victim's wish to keep the matter confidential, while taking steps to ensure the future safety other faculty, staff, and students. With such information, KHSC-KansasCOM can keep an accurate record of the number of incidents involving students, determine where there is a pattern of crime with regard to a particular location, method, or assailant, and alert the KHSC-KansasCOM community to potential danger. Reports filed in this manner are counted and disclosed in the annual crime's statistics for the Institution. Anonymous crime reporting is not for emergencies. If you need to report an emergency, call 911.

Campus Security Authorities

KHSC-KansasCOM has designated Sean Wallace, Director of Physical Operations & Security; Jon Havner, Director of Facilities; Jennifer Gantz, Chief Financial Officer, Dr. Nick Palisch, Director of Student Affairs and Title IX Coordinator, Dr. David Ninan, Interim Dean and Chief Academic Officer, Dr. Rick Winslow, Associate Dean for Student Affairs & Services, Dr. Kimberly Long, Associate Dean for Academic Affairs, and Tori Phillippi, Manager- Board Affairs & Community Relations as the Campus Security Authorities, and they are responsible for coordinating disaster preparedness, maintaining fire alert and building security systems, reporting crimes to local authorities, and keeping campus safety records for KHSC-KansasCOM.

Emergency Response and Evacuation Procedures

Outside of emergency communications, KHSC-KansasCOM must provide a timely warning of Clery crimes reported to Campus Security and local police agencies in a manner that is intended to prevent similar crimes from recurring and to protect the personal safety of students and employees. KHSC-KansasCOM's timely warning messages are disseminated by the designated Communication Coordinators.

The decision to disseminate a timely warning will be made by the Campus Security Authorities on a case-by-case basis, considering all the facts surrounding the crime and the continuing danger to the KHSC-KansasCOM community. (The Campus Security Authorities can be found listed in this report above.) Crime alerts will contain a brief description of the incident; the date, time, and location of the incident; and precautions to take. The amount and type of information presented in the warning will vary depending on the circumstances of the crime. Significant criminal incidents that might elicit a timely warning include, but are not limited to, crimes of violence or patterns of property crimes.

Timely and accurate communication with the KHSC-KansasCOM community during a campus emergency is critical. Upon confirmation of a significant emergency or dangerous situation occurring on the campus that involves an immediate threat to the health or safety of students or employees, the Security Authorities, aided by the designated Communications Coordinator will immediately notify the KHSC-KansasCOM community. Note that confirmation means that a member of the Campus Security Authorities has verified that a legitimate emergency or dangerous situation exists.

In consultation with the Campus Security Authorities, the Communication Coordinator will (1) determine the appropriate segment(s) of the KHSC-KansasCOM community to receive immediate notification as well as the appropriate segment for follow-up communication or notification, (2) determine the contents of the notification, and (3) initiate the notification system (RAVE and/or the KHSC-KansasCOM SAFE APP). Only the representatives explicitly authorized by the Campus Security Authorities may distribute public statements or comments on behalf of KHSC-KansasCOM related to any developing, unfolding, or resolved crisis scenario. The Campus Security Authority members can be found listed above in this report.

The Communication Coordinator is the only representatives explicitly authorized by the Campus Security Authorities to distribute prepared statements or comments on behalf of KHSC-KansasCOM related to any developing, unfolding, or resolved crisis scenario. The Communication Coordinator is Dr. Tiffany Masson Psy.D., President of KHSC-KansasCOM.

Key priorities of emergency communications will be:

- Providing timely status reports and announcements to the KHSC-KansasCOM community internal audience, which includes:
 - o Employees, faculty, and staff
 - Students
 - Visitors
 - Groups using KHSC-KansasCOM facilities
 - TCS Education System ("TCS")

- Communicating accurate information to external audiences as determined prudent on a case-by-case basis to help prevent the spread of rumors and misinformation. External audiences may include:
 - o Family and relatives of students, employees, faculty, and staff
 - Board of Trustees
 - o Community-at-large
 - Neighbors
- Gathering information, reports, and recommendations on the status of the emergency as it evolves.

When doing so does not jeopardize life or property, the Communications Coordinator will consult with the TCS Chief of Staff and TCS Senior Director of Marketing and Public Relations about crafting crisis communications, especially non-emergency status notifications and any external communications to the public or media organizations.

KHSC-KansasCOM will issue said emergency notifications via KHSC-KansasCOM email and text message using the RAVE alert system and the KHSC-KansasCOM SAFE APP. The RAVE system and KHSC-KansasCOM SAFE APP distribution list is generated at the start if each new class during orientation. The list will include everyone's email addresses and phone numbers. Users must manually add their phone numbers. The lists are defined as: KHSC-KansasCOM faculty, staff, and students

If you desire to also receive a TEXT message on your cell phone, you will need to opt-in and list your cell phone number in the Rave Emergency Alert System. To expedite delivery of a potentially lifesaving communication, we encourage you to subscribe to the text message option by visiting: https://www.getrave.com/login/tcsedsystem.

KHSC-KansasCOM will, without delay, and considering the safety of the KHSC-KansasCOM community, initiate the notification system unless issuing such a notification will, in the professional judgement of responsible authorities, compromise efforts to assist a victim or to contain, respond to or otherwise mitigate the emergency. KHSC-KansasCOM has requested cooperation from the local police department regarding informing KHSC-KansasCOM about any crimes that may warrant an emergency response.

Emergency Evacuation Procedures

In the event of an emergency that requires evacuating the campus, each level has a floor warden to coordinate evacuation. KHSC-KansasCOM floor wardens work with building security to direct the KHSC-KansasCOM community members to appropriate emergency exits and reconnoiter locations.

Emergency Notification and Evacuation Tests

Each year the campus participates in an annual fire drill and tornado drill. The annual fire drill and tornado drill are coordinated by the Campus Security Authorities and led by the Director of Physical Operations & Security and the Director of Facilities.³

³ There are no emergency drills to report for the prior year because the campus first opened to students in July 2022.

The RAVE Alert System and KHSC-KansasCOM SAFE APP will be utilized for emergency notifications KHSC-KansasCOM publicizes its emergency response and evacuation procedures by updating the procedures on the KHSC website and sending out an email with the link to the procedures to students and staff annually, in conjunction with the publication of this Annual Security Report.

KHSC-KansasCOM physical operations fire drill and tornado drill procedures are as follows:

- The tests are both announced and unannounced.
- Each floor of the campus has a floor warden, sometimes two, that assists with evacuation.
- The evacuation policy can be found on the Campus Safety Page of KHSC-KansasCOM website here.
- Documentation of each test is maintained in the Guardian Records Management system.

Disclosure and Crime Statistics

Crime statistics will be requested, collected, and reported annually by the Director of Physical Operations & Security collected from the Wichita Police Department. Since KHSC-KansasCOM first opened to students in late July 2022, crime statistics were not collected and are not available for 2021.

Collection of Statistics for Campus Security Report

The Director of Physical Operations & Security is primarily responsible for gathering crime statistics related to the campus security report, identifying reportable crimes, and reporting/publishing statistics to the Department of Education, to the FBI, and to the public on behalf of KHSC-KansasCOM. The law enforcement agency with jurisdiction over the area in which the campus is located has been asked to provide crime statistics for campus and non-campus properties according to each location's appropriate reporting geography. Statistics are reported in different formats and categories depending upon legal requirements. Each set of statistics were used in the preparation of the crime statistics provided in this report.

KHSC-KansasCOM urges that all crimes be reported to the Campus Security Department and to the Title IX Coordinator. As noted above, the campus also surveys Campus Security Authorities including those with responsibility for controlling access to buildings or facilities and officials having significant responsibility for students or campus activities.

KHSC-KansasCOM reports arrests for liquor law, drug, and weapons violations occurring on campus or on off campus properties. A disciplinary referral will be reported if it is not otherwise reported as an arrest or crime.

Crime Prevention and Safety Awareness

Employees and students are notified during their respective orientation sessions about how and where to report any incidents involving Campus Security. They are provided with a security presentation from the Director of Physical Operations & Security and the Wichita Police Department. KHSC-KansasCOM also provides training and programs to prevent

sexual misconduct and related crimes, which are detailed in this Report under the section entitled Title IX Policy and Training Materials.

One to two times a trimester, the Campus Security Department provides crime prevention on the following topics and others:

- Active Shooter Response
- Personal Safety
- Dating Violence
- Communications Skills for Personal Safety

KHSC-KansasCOM also provides ongoing information to students on the numerous monitors throughout campus.

Alcohol and Other Drugs Policies and Programs

Kansas Health Science Center (KHSC)-Kansas College of Osteopathic Medicine (KHSC-KansasCOM) prohibits the use and possession of drugs and alcohol on-campus property, unless they are prescribed medications or permission is given as part of a KHSC-KansasCOM related event.

The dispensing, selling, or supplying of drugs or alcoholic beverages to a person under 21 years old is prohibited. Employees, students, applicants for employment, customers, third-party contractors, visitors, or anyone who participates in KHSC-KansasCOM's education programs and activities may not unlawfully manufacture, consume, possess, sell, distribute, transfer, or be under the influence of alcohol, illicit drugs, or controlled substances on KHSC-KansasCOM property, while driving a KHSC-KansasCOM vehicle, or while otherwise engaged in KHSC-KansasCOM business. KHSC-KansasCOM property includes all buildings land owned, leased, or used by KHSC-KansasCOM, and motor vehicles operated by employees, including personal motor vehicles, when used in connection with work performed for or on behalf of KHSC-KansasCOM.

Under the Drug-Free Schools and Communities Act (DFSCA) and in accordance with the Drug-Free Schools and Campuses Regulations (EDGAR), KHSC-KansasCOM is required to have a drug and alcohol abuse and prevention policy and distribute this policy annually to all employees and students.

KHSC-KansasCOM uses evidence-based strategic interventions, collaboration, innovation, and the incorporation of wellness programs to reduce harmful consequences of alcohol and other drug use. Strategies include:

- Providing education and awareness activities.
- Offering substance-free social and extracurricular, and public/community service options.
- Creating a health-conscious environment.
- Restricting the marketing and promotion of alcohol and other drugs.
- Limiting availability of alcohol.
- Developing and enforcing campus policies and enforcing laws to address high-risk and illegal alcohol and other drug use.

 Providing early intervention and referral for treatment. For more detailed information on KHSC-KansasCOM alcohol related and other drug related prevention strategies, contact the Offices of Student Affairs and Services or Human Resources.

Sexual Misconduct Policies and Procedures

KHSC-KansasCOM is committed to creating and maintaining a safe learning and working environment that is free from unlawful discrimination, harassment, and retaliation. The Policy prohibits discrimination, harassment, and Sexual Misconduct, which includes Sexual Harassment, and all other forms of discrimination and harassment based on membership in any Protected Category. The Policy also prohibits retaliation against anyone who exercises their rights under the Policy.

KHSC-KansasCOM encourages campus community members who have experienced sexual misconduct to immediately report the incident to the local police department and Campus Security. It is important if sexually assaulted to contact law enforcement immediately in the event there is physical evidence that needs to be collected and preserved.

Sexual Misconduct that falls under the Title IX Definition of Sexual Harassment. After reviewing a report of sexual misconduct, the Title IX Coordinator will conduct an initial assessment, parallel to any law enforcement investigation initiated. The steps in an initial assessment will include contacting the Complainant to offer supportive measures and to determine how the Complainant wishes to proceed in addition to reviewing and/or discussing the information provided in the report with the Complainant. The initial assessment is not intended to be a full investigation interview. The Associate Dean for Student Affairs and Services will provide the Complainant with a written statement of their rights and options if the allegations involve Sexual Misconduct. At the conclusion of the initial assessment, the Title IX Coordinator will determine the appropriate next steps. If the Complainant does not wish to go forward with an investigation, the Title IX Coordinator has the discretion to take any measures necessary to ensure that discrimination, harassment, or retaliation are remedied.

Supportive Measures

Confidentiality will be maintained throughout the process. Complete publicly available recordkeeping, including Clery Act reporting and disclosures are maintained; however, without the inclusion of personally identifying information about the victim, as defined in section 40002(a)(20) of the Violence Against Women Act of 1994 (42 U.S.C. 13925(a)(20)); and KHSC-KansasCOM will act to ensure as minimal an academic impact on the parties as possible. KHSC-KansasCOM will implement measures in a way that does not unreasonably burden any party. Supportive measures may include referral to counseling, medical, and/or other healthcare services, student financial aid counseling, visa, and immigration assistance, implementing a no-contact order, academic support, extensions of academic deadlines, or other course/academic program-related adjustments, and class schedule modifications, withdrawals, or leaves of absence.

KHSC-KansasCOM will direct the victim to a variety of professional counselors, domestic violence counselors, and pastoral counselors located near the KHSC-KansasCOM campus, KHSC-KansasCOM offers as a benefit to its students professional counseling services as confidential resources:

- ComPsych: ComPsych is a free, confidential, around-the-clock counseling service available to all KHSC-KansasCOM students.
- On campus counseling from the KHSC-KansasCOM Campus Counselor.

Counselors who provide services to KHSC-KansasCOM community members through Student Solutions are not required to disclose reports of sexual misconduct to KHSC-KansasCOM's Title IX Coordinator. While professional and non-professional counselors and advocates may maintain a complainant's confidentiality vis-à-vis KHSC-KansasCOM, they may have reporting or other obligations under state law. A complainant is encouraged to ask the counselor to explain their ability to protect the student's privacy and to maintain confidential communications.

Disciplinary Action/Sanctions for Sexual Misconduct

Sanctions for students who engage in sexual misconduct may include, but are not limited to:

- Formal written warning.
- Professionalism Improvement Plan (a plan intended to require reflection and remediation of behavior found to have violated this policy).
- No contact order pertaining to certain KHSC-KansasCOM Community students or employees.
- Probation (a written reprimand for violation of institutional policy, providing for more severe disciplinary sanctions if the student is found in violation of any institutional policy, procedure, or directive within one academic year. Terms of the probation will be articulated and may include denial of specified social privileges, exclusion from co-curricular activities, exclusion from designated areas of campus, no-contact orders, and/or other measures deemed appropriate).
- Suspension (termination of student status for a definite period not to exceed one academic year and/or until specific criteria are met. Students who return from suspension are automatically placed on probation through the remainder of their tenure as a student at KHSC-KansasCOM).
- Withholding of a degree or certificate.
- Referral to counseling services and/or Student Solutions for the Respondent; and/or dismissal from KHSC-KansasCOM.
- In addition, further protections for the Complainant may be available.

Sex Offender Registry

Students, faculty, and staff can access Kansas Sex Offender Registry online at https://www.kbi.ks.gov/registeredoffender/. The Wichita Police Departments maintains a database of registered sex offenders in the specific to the Wichita area and displays the locations on their Community Crime Map found here: https://communitycrimemap.com/.

Sexual Misconduct Awareness Training and Prevention

KHSC-KansasCOM maintains a safe living, learning, and working environment through systemwide policies as described above in this report. KHSC-KansasCOM prohibits dating violence, domestic violence, sexual misconduct/sexual assault, sexual exploitation, and stalking. KHSC-KansasCOM has only had students on campus since July 25, 2022, and although a comprehensive, intentional, and integrated programming, initiatives, strategies, and campaigns intended to stop dating violence, domestic violence, sexual misconduct/sexual assault, sexual exploitation, and stalking before they occur is part of our overarching security strategy, these prevention programs are still under development and will be made available upon completion.

Other Title IX Training Materials are available:

- https://icslawyer.com/posting-for-review-tcs-title-ix-team-training/
- https://icslawyer.com/posting-for-review-ics-august-12-title-ix-training/
- TCS Title IX Training

Questions about Title IX and KHSC's Anti-Discrimination, Anti-Harassment, and Title IX Policy may be directed to:

Title IX Coordinator:
Dr. Nicholas Palisch
npalisch@kansashsc.org
316.315.5471

Title IX Deputy Coordinator:
Ms. Debbie Haslam
dhaslam@kansashsc.org
316.315.5638

Students may also direct questions about Title IX and the Campus Save Act to: Khscstuaffairs@kansashsc.org

Community members may also direct questions about Title IX to:

United States Department of Education Office of Civil Rights (OCR)

Customer Service Hotline: 800-421-3481

TDD#: 877-521-2172
Website: www.ed.gov/ocr
E-mail: ocr@ed.gov

400 Maryland Avenue SW, Washington, DC 20202-1100

Crime Statistics

KHSC-KansasCOM first opened to students on July 25, 2022. Therefore, no crime statistics are available for 2019, 2020, and 2021.

Crimes Reported by Hierarchy⁴

Crimes Reported by Filerarchy									
	Campus Property			Non-Campus Building or Property			Public Property		
Offense Type	2019	2020	2021	2019	2020	2021	2019	2020	2021
Murder/nonnegligent manslaughter	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Negligent manslaughter	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Rape	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Fondling	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Incest	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Statutory rape	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Robbery	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Aggravated assault	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Burglary	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Motor vehicle theft	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Liquor Law Arrests	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Drug Law Arrests	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Weapon Law Arrests	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Liquor Law Violations Referred for Disciplinary Action	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A

⁴ The Institution uses the Hierarchy Rule for reporting. When counting multiple Clery Act reportable offenses, only the most serious offense be counted when more than one offense was committed during a single incident. The Hierarchy rule does not apply to incidents involving Arson, Domestic Violence, Dating Violence, Stalking, and any incidents involving Hate Crimes. These crimes are always counted in addition to, and regardless of the nature of, any other Clery reportable offenses that were committed during the same incident.

Crimes Reported by Hierarchy ⁴									
	Campus Property			Non-Campus Building or Property			Public Property		
Offense Type	2019	2020	2021	2019	2020	2021	2019	2020	2021
Drug Law Violations Referred for Disciplinary Action	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Weapons Law Violations Referred for Disciplinary Action	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Domestic Violence	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Dating Violence	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Stalking	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A

Crimes Not Reported by Hierarchy									
	Campus Property			Non-Campus Property			Public Property		
Offense Type (Reported by Hierarchy)	2019	2020	2021	2019	2020	2021	2019	2020	2021
Arson	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Domestic Violence	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Dating Violence	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Stalking	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A

Hate Crime and Bias Category Data: KHSC-KansasCOM first opened to students on July 25, 2022. Therefore, Hate Crime and Bias Category Data are not available for 2019, 2020, and 2021.

Unfounded Crimes: KHSC-KansasCOM first opened to students on July 25, 2022. Therefore, Unfounded Crime data is not available for 2019, 2020, and 2021.

Definitions of Clearly Act Crimes, State Law Definitions of Certain Sexual Misconduct Crimes, and Clery Geography Definitions

Aggravated Assault – An unlawful attack by one person upon another for the purpose of inflicting severe or aggravated bodily injury. This type of assault usually is accompanied by the use of a weapon or by means likely to produce death or great bodily harm. It is not necessary that injury result from an aggravated assault when a gun, knife, or other weapon is used which could and probably would result in serious personal injury if the crime were successfully completed.

Arson – Any willful or malicious burning or attempt to burn, with or without intent to defraud, a dwelling house, public building, motor vehicle or aircraft, personal property of another, etc.

Assault – An unlawful attack by one person upon another.

Bias Crime – A criminal offense committed against a person, property or society that is motivated in whole or in part by the offender's bias against a race, religion, disability, sexual orientation, or ethnicity/national origin; also known as Hate Crime.

Burglary – The unlawful entry of a structure to commit a felony or a theft. For reporting purposes this definition includes unlawful entry with intent to commit a larceny or felony; breaking and entering with intent to commit a larceny; housebreaking, safecracking; and all attempts to commit any of the aforementioned.

Campus Property

- Any building or property owned or controlled by an institution within the same reasonably contiguous geographic area and used by the institution in direct support of, or in a manner related to, the institution's educational purposes, including residence halls.
- Any building or property owned or controlled by an institution within the same reasonably contiguous to the are identified in paragraph 1 of this definition; that is owned by the institution but controlled by another person, is frequently used by students; and supports institutional purposes (such as a food or retail vendor).

Campus Security Authority

- A campus police department or a Campus Security department of an institution.
- Any individual or individuals who have responsibility for campus security but who do
 not constitute a campus police department or a Campus Security department such
 as an individual who is responsible for monitoring entrance into institutional property.
- Any individual or organization specified in an institution's statement of campus security policy as an individual or organization to which students and employees should report criminal offenses.
- An official of an institution who has significant responsibility for student and campus activities, including, but not limited to, student housing, student discipline, and campus judicial proceedings. If such an official is a pastoral or professional

counselor as defined below, the official is not considered a Campus Security Authority when acting as a pastoral or professional counselor.

Consent – Under Kansas law, "Consent" is not a separately defined term in Kansas criminal statute. However, under the Kansas law, the definitions of Rape (K.S.A. 21-5503) and Sexual Battery (K.S.A. 21-5505) provide that consent is absent under the following circumstances: (1) an individual is overcome by force or fear; (2) an individual is unconscious or physically powerless; (3) an individual is unable to give consent because of mental deficiency or disease; or (4) an individual is unable to give consent because of the effect of any alcohol liquor, narcotic, drug or other substance, which condition was known by the offender or was reasonably apparent to the offender.

Criminal Homicide – The killing of another person through gross negligence.

Dating Violence – Violence committed by a person who is or has been in a social relationship of a romantic or intimate nature with the victim; and where the existence of the relationship shall be determined based on a consideration of the following factors – the length of the relationship, the type of relationship, and the frequency of interaction between persons in the relationship. Dating violence includes, but is not limited to, sexual or physical abuse or the threat of such abuse. Dating violence does not include acts covered under the definition of domestic violence.

Under Kansas law, "Dating violence" is not a separately defined term in Kansas criminal statute. However, included within the crimes of "domestic violence" (defined previously) and "domestic battery" and "aggravated domestic battery" (as defined below):

Domestic Battery – K.S.A. 21-5414 (a)

- Knowingly or recklessly causing bodily harm to a person with whom the offender is involved or has been involved in a dating relationship or a family or household member; or
- Knowingly causing physical contact with a person with whom the offender is involved or has been involved in a dating relationship or a family or household member, when done in a rude, insulting, or angry manner.

Aggravated Domestic Battery – K.S.A. 21-5414 (b)

- Knowingly impeding the normal breathing or circulation of the blood by applying
 pressure on the throat, neck, or chest of a person with whom the offender is involved
 or has been involved in a dating relationship or a family or household member, when
 done in a rude, insulting, or angry manner; or
- Knowingly impeding the normal breathing or circulation of the blood by blocking the
 nose or mouth of a person with whom the offender is involved or has been involved
 in a dating relationship or a family or household member, when done in a rude,
 insulting, or angry manner.

Destruction/Damage/Vandalism of Property - To willfully or maliciously destroy, damage, deface, or otherwise injure real or personal property without the consent of the owner or the person having custody or control of it.

Disabled – Of or relating to persons who have physical or mental impairments/challenges, whether temporary or permanent, due to conditions that are congenital or acquired by heredity, accident, injury, advanced age, or illness.

Domestic Violence – K.S.A. 21-5111 (i)

Includes felony or misdemeanor crimes of violence committed by a current or former spouse of the victim, by a person with whom the victim shares a child in common, by a person who is cohabitating with or has cohabitated with the victim as a spouse, by a person similarly situated to a spouse of the victim under the domestic or family violence laws of the jurisdiction, or by any other person against an adult or youth victim who is protected from that person's acts under the domestic or family violence laws of the jurisdiction.

Under Kansas law, "Domestic Violence" means an act or threatened act of violence against a person with whom the offender is involved or has been involved in a dating relationship, or an act or threatened act of violence against a family or household member by a family or household member. "Domestic violence" also includes any other crime committed against a person or against property, or any municipal ordinance violation against a person or against property, when directed against a person with whom the offender is involved or has been involved in a dating relationship or when directed against a family or household member by a family or household member. For the purposes of this definition:

- "Dating relationship" means a social relationship of a romantic nature. In addition to any other factors the court deems relevant, the trier of fact may consider the following when making a determination of whether a relationship exists or existed: Nature of the relationship, length of time the relationship existed, frequency of interaction between the parties and time since termination of the relationship, if applicable.
- "Family or household member" means persons 18 years of age or older who are spouses, former spouses, parents or stepparents and children or stepchildren, and persons who are presently residing together or have resided together in the past, and persons who have a child in common regardless of whether they have been married or have lived together at any time. "Family or household member" also includes a man and woman if the woman is pregnant and the man is alleged to be the father, regardless of whether they have been married or have lived together at any time.

Drug Abuse Violations – The violation of laws prohibiting the production, distribution, and/or use of certain controlled substances and the equipment or devices utilized in their preparation and/or use. The unlawful cultivation, manufacture, distribution, sale, purchase, use, possession, transportation, or importation of any controlled drug or narcotic substance.

Arrests for violations of state and local laws, specifically those relating to the unlawful possession, sale, use, growing, manufacturing, and making of narcotic drugs.

Hate Crime – A crime reported to local police agencies or to a Campus Security Authority that manifests evidence that the victim was intentionally selected because of the perpetrator's bias against the victim. For the purposes of this section, the categories of bias include the victim's actual or perceived race, religion, gender, gender identity, sexual orientation, ethnicity, national origin, and disability.

Justifiable Homicide – The killing of a felon by a peace officer in the line of duty or the killing of a felon, during the commission of a felony, by a private citizen.

Larceny-theft – The unlawful taking, carrying, leading, or riding away of property from the possession or constructive possession of another. Attempted larcenies are included. Embezzlement, confidence games, forgery, worthless checks, etc., are excluded.

Liquor Law Violations – The violation of state or local laws or ordinances prohibiting the manufacture, sale, purchase, transportation, possession, or use of alcoholic beverages, not including driving under the influence and drunkenness.

Manslaughter by Negligence – The killing of another person through gross negligence.

Motor Vehicle Theft – The theft or attempted theft of a motor vehicle. Includes all cases where automobiles are taken by persons not having lawful access even though the vehicles are later abandoned—including joyriding.

Murder and Non-Negligent Manslaughter – The willful (non-negligent) killing of one human being by another.

Narcotics/Drug Offenses – The unlawful possession, sale, use, transportation, cultivation, manufacturing, and/or making of narcotic drugs.

Non-campus Building or Property

- Any building or property owned or controlled by a student organization that is officially recognized by the institution; or
- Any building or property owned or controlled by an institution that is used in direct support of, or in relation to, the institution's educational purposes; is frequently used by students and is not within the same reasonably contiguous geographic area of the Institution.

Public Property – All public property, including thoroughfares, streets, sidewalks, and parking facilities, which is within the campus, or immediately adjacent to and accessible from the campus.

Racial Bias - A pre-formed negative opinion or attitude toward a group of persons who possess common physical characteristics, e.g., color of skin, eyes, and/or hair; facial

features; etc., genetically transmitted by descent and heredity which distinguish them as a distinct division of humankind, e.g., Asians, Blacks, Whites.

Robbery – The taking or attempting to take anything of value from the care, custody, or control of a person or persons by force or threat of force or violence and/or putting the victim in fear.

Sex Offenses (General) – Any sexual act directed against another person, without the consent of the victim, including instances where the victim is incapable of giving consent.

- Fondling The touching of the private body parts of another person for the purpose
 of sexual gratification, without the consent of the victim, including instances where
 the victim is incapable of giving consent because of his/her age or because of
 his/her temporary or permanent mental incapacity.
- **Incest** Sexual intercourse between persons who are related to each other within the degrees wherein marriage is prohibited by law.
- Statutory Rape Sexual intercourse with a person who is under the statutory age of consent.

Sex Offenses – **Forcible** – Any sexual act directed against another person, forcibly and/or against that person's will; or not forcibly or against the person's will where the victim is incapable of giving consent.

- **Forcible Rape** The carnal knowledge of a person, forcibly and/or against that person's will; or not forcibly or against the person's will where the victim is incapable of giving consent because of his/her temporary or permanent mental or physical incapacity (or because of his/her youth).
- **Forcible Sodomy** Oral or any sexual intercourse with another person forcibly and/or against that person's will; or not forcibly against the person's will where the victim is incapable of giving consent because of his/her youth or because of his/her temporary or permanent mental or physical incapacity.
- Sexual Assault with an Object The use of an object or instrument to unlawfully
 penetrate, however slightly, the genital or anal opening of the body of another
 person, forcibly and/or against that person's will; or not forcibly against the person's
 will where the victim is incapable of giving consent because of his/her youth or
 because of his/her temporary or permanent mental or physical incapacity.
- Forcible Fondling The touching of the private body parts of another person for the
 purpose of sexual gratification, forcibly and/or against the person's will; or not
 forcibly against the person's will where the victim is incapable of giving consent
 because of his/her youth or because of his/her temporary or permanent mental or
 physical incapacity.

Sex Offenses Definitions from the National Incident-Based Reporting System Edition of the Uniform Crime Reporting Program.

Sex Offenses – **Non-forcible** – Unlawful, non-forcible sexual intercourse. Includes:

- **Incest Non-forcible** Sexual intercourse between persons who are related to each other within the degrees wherein marriage is prohibited by law.
- **Statutory Rape** Non-forcible sexual intercourse with a person who is under the statutory age of consent.

Sex Offenses Definitions from the National Incident-Based Reporting System Edition of the Uniform Crime Reporting Program.

Sexual Assault – Offenses classified as a forcible or non-forcible sex offense under the uniform crime reporting system of the Federal Bureau of Investigation, which includes forcible rape, forcible sodomy, sexual assault with an object, forcible fondling, incest, and statutory rape.

Under Kansas law, "Sexual Assault" is not a separately defined term in Kansas criminal statute. The definitions of "Sex Offenses under Kansas law are set forth in K.S.A. 21-5501 et seq., including but not limited to "sexual battery", "aggravated sexual battery", and "rape" defined below.

Sexual Battery – K.S.A 21-5505 (a)

The touching of a victim who is 16 or more years of age and who does not consent thereto, with the intent to arouse or satisfy the sexual desires of the offender or another.

- Aggravated Sexual Battery K.S.A. 21-5505 (b)
 - Sexual battery, as defined above, under any of the following circumstances:
 - When the victim is overcome by force or fear.
 - When the victim is unconscious or physically powerless; or
 - When the victim is incapable of giving consent because of mental deficiency or disease, or when the victim is incapable of giving consent because of the effect of any alcoholic liquor, narcotic, drug, or other substance, which condition was known by, or was reasonably apparent to, the offender.
- Rape K.S.A. 21-5503 (a)
 - Knowingly engaging in sexual intercourse with a victim who does not consent to the sexual intercourse under any of the following circumstances:
 - o When the victim is overcome by force or fear; or
 - When the victim is unconscious or physically powerless.
 - Knowingly engaging in sexual intercourse with a victim when the victim is incapable of giving consent because of mental deficiency or disease, or when the victim is incapable of giving consent because of the effect of any alcoholic liquor, narcotic, drug, or other substance, which condition was known by the offender or was reasonably apparent to the offender.
 - Sexual intercourse with a child who is under 14 years of age.

- Sexual intercourse with a victim when the victim's consent was obtained through a knowing misrepresentation made by the offender that the sexual intercourse was a medically or therapeutically necessary procedure; or
- Sexual intercourse with a victim when the victim's consent was obtained through a knowing misrepresentation made by the offender that the sexual intercourse was a legally required procedure within the scope of the offender's authority.

Sexual Misconduct – Includes, but is not limited to, sexual harassment and sexual violence, including forcible and non-forcible sex offenses, sexual assault, domestic violence, dating violence, or stalking, as defined below.

Simple Assault – An unlawful physical attack by one person upon another where neither the offender displays a weapon, nor the victim suffers obvious severe or aggravated bodily injury involving apparent broken bones, loss of teeth, possible internal injury, severe laceration, or loss of consciousness.

Stalking – K.S.A. 21-5427

Occurs when an individual engages in a course of conduct directed at a specific person that would cause a reasonable person to fear for his or her safety or the safety of others or suffer substantial emotional distress. For the purpose of this definition, *course of conduct* means two or more acts, including, but not limited to, acts in which the stalker directly, indirectly, or through third parties, by any action, method, device, or means, follows, monitors, observes, surveils, threatens, or communicates to or about a person, or interferes with a person's property. For the purpose of this definition, *Reasonable person* means a reasonable person under similar circumstances and with similar identities to the victim. For the purpose of this definition, *substantial emotional distress* means significant mental suffering or anguish that may, but does not necessarily, require medical or other professional treatment or counseling.

Under Kansas law, stalking is defined as:

- Recklessly engaging in a course of conduct targeted at a specific person which
 would cause a reasonable person in the circumstances of the targeted person to fear
 for such person's safety, or the safety of a member of such person's immediate
 family and the targeted person is placed in such fear.
- Engaging in a course of conduct targeted at a specific person with knowledge that the course of conduct will place the targeted person in fear for such person's safety or the safety of a member of such person's immediate family.
- After being served with, or otherwise provided notice of, any protective order included in K.S.A. 21-3843, prior to its repeal or K.S.A. 21-5924, and amendments thereto, that prohibits contact with a targeted person, recklessly engaging in at least one act listed in subsection (f)(1) that violates the provisions of the order and would cause a reasonable person to fear for such person's safety, or the safety of a member of such person's immediate family and the targeted person is actually placed in such fear; or

• Intentionally engaging in a course of conduct targeted at a specific child under the age of 14 that would cause a reasonable person in the circumstances of the targeted child, or a reasonable person in the circumstances of an immediate family member of such child, to fear for such child's safety.

Weapons Violations - Carrying, Possessing, Etc. – The violation of laws or ordinances prohibiting the manufacture, sale, purchase, transportation, possession, concealment, or use of firearms, cutting instruments, explosives, incendiary devices, or other deadly weapons.